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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of ADD REALTY LIMITED,

Report on the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the standalone financial statements of ADD REALTY LIMITED (“the Company”), which
comprise the balance sheet as at 31st March 2019, and the statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended
on that date, and a summary nf the significant accounting pullclds and other explanatory information
(hereinafter referred to as “the standalone financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 201 5, as amended,
(“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2019, the loss and total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the

year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (5As). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audil upinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report

thereon.
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears

to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance (Changes in Equity), total comprehensive income, changes in equity
and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally

accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability Lo continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related Lo wuing cuncern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken op.thiebasis of these

standalone financial statements. N
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any
identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that

we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. From
the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. R
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b. in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books

C. the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income, the
statement of change in equity and the statement of Cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement
with the books of account.

d. in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,

2015.

€. on the basis of written representations received from the directors of the company as on 31 March
2019, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 315t March
2019, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f. with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over the financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer our separate report in Annexure ‘A’.
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Comnpany does nat have any el LLlgatlons which would impact 1ts hinancial positiui,

iil. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There are no items which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.
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2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘B’ a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.:

Sateesh Patil
Partner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29" May 2019
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditors’ Report

(Refer to in Paragraph 1(f) under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section of our
report to the members of ADD REALTY LIMITED of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ADD REALTY LIMITED (“the
Company”) as of 31 March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the

Company for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essentjal

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for eénsuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial

information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Interpal
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by
ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable

udit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued By the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
rting was established and maintained and if

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the standalone

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 41
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. /«;
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance
with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as
at 31* March 2019, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Sateesh Patil
Partner
Membership No.:

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29'" May 2019
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ Section of our
report to the members of ADD REALTY LIMITED of even date.

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a true and fair view on the standalone
financial statements of the Company and taking into consideration the information and explanations given to
us and the books of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we report that:

(i) In respect of company’s fixed assets:

(a)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)The fixed assets have been physically verified by the management during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed on such verification. In our opinion, the frequency of verification of the
fixed assets is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company except the
following free hold lands:

i. With respect to the free hold land purchased through sale deed dated 14th May 2008 located at
Coonoor having a carrying value of Rs. 5,85,50,000/- is held jointly with other companies. All the other
companies have assigned their interest in favor of ADD Realty Limited (the Company) vide assignment
deed dated 14th May 2008.

ii. With respect to the free hold land added to fixed assets on account of, approval of scheme of
amalgamation by Hon’ble NCLT bench at Bangalore through merger order vide dated 16th October
2017, giving the effective date of 1st April 2016, are still in the name of ADD Eco Enviro Limited
("Transferor Company No 1") and Sanmati Power Company Private Limited ("Transferor Company
No 2°). The Transferee Company is in the process of getting the title deeds transferred in their
name,

(i) The Company does not have any inventory as at the year ending 31° March 2019. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable.

(i)~ The Company has granted unsecured loans to two parties covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Act and with respect to the same:

(a) in our opinion the terms and conditions of grant of such loans are, prima facie, prejudicial to
the company’s interest.

(b) The principal amounts are repayable on demand and since the repayment of such loans has not
been demanded, in our opinion, receipt of the principal amount is regular; and




MAHESHWARI & ASSOCIATES

Chartered Accountants

(iv)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and
investments made.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act
and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable.

(vi)  To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance
of cost records under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s
products/services. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

(vil)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund,
employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, Goods and Service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with
the appropriate authorities. However there have been slight delays in few cases.

(b) Undisputed amounts payable in respect to provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, Goods and Service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities, which were
outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable
are as follows:

| Name of the

Nature of the | Amount [ Period to Due Date ~ Date of
J statute

dues ‘ (%) which the Payment
amount relates

2017-18 16th October 2017 | Not paid As on_

date

| Duty Act,1994
e .

|

| |

| Tamil NEd_u'SWnp_/L ‘Stamp Duty | 23,80,817
|
f

(c) There are no dues outstanding in respect of sales-tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs,
duty of excise, value added tax and cess that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute .

(viii) The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any Bank, financial institution,
Government, or debenture holders during the year. However, there are no overdue instalments
in respect of the loan repayable.

(ix)  The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the
order is not applicable.

(X) According to the information and explanation given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has been
our audit.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(Xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

In our opinion, managerial remuneration has been paid (and)/ provided in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 of the Act read with Schedule V to the

Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections
177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
the standalone financial statements as required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records
of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the

Reserve Bank of India Act 1934.

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants_

Sateesh Patil
Partner Y
Membership No.: 22

Place: Bengaluru
Date: 29" May 2019




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars Note As at As at As at
No. 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) Property,Plant and Equipments 3 4,03,584.36 4,09,847.40 4,18,957.21
{(b) Financial Assets
- Investments 4 1,61,747.82 1,31,652.90 1,29,673.87
- Loans 5 1,358.68 6,307.41 3,128.09
- Other non-current financial Assets 6 815.03 815.03 815.03
(c) Other non-current Assets 7 - - 15,150.00
5,67,505.89 | 5,48,622.74 | 5,67,724.20
Current assets
(a) Financial assets
- Trade Receivable 8 15,183.00 41,037.33 40,756.68
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 51.69 569.32 2,724.28
- Other Current Financial Assets 10 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37
(b) Current Income tax Receivable (Net) 26 1,601.30 535.71 -
24,362.36 49,668.73 51,007.33
TOTAL ASSETS 5,91,868.25 5,98,291.47 6,18,731.53
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share capital 11 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30
(b) Other Equity 12 2,54,050.40 2,96,373.86 2,87,912.70
Total equity 4,01,198.70 4,43,522.16 4,35,061.00
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 13 22,883.81 25,644.97 20,767.10
(b) Provisions 14 43.54 5 %
(c) Deffered Tax Liabilities 26 36,458.95 35,461.74 38,989.54
(d) Other non current liabilities 15 39,625.43 33,270.43 68,370.43
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 16 48,729.31 18,559.37 15,650.00
- Trade payables
dues to micro and smail enterprises 17
dues to others 38,311.15 37,821.09 38,081.40
(b) Provision 18 0.64 - 18.33
(c) Other current liabilities 19 4,616,72 4,011,771 1,633.19
(d) Current income Tax Liabilities 26 - 160.54
1,90,669.55 1,54,769.31 1,83,670.53
Tolal lablicles 1,90,6bY,55 1,84, 769, 31 1,83,670,5)
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARI TIFS 5,91.8R8 75 5,00,301. 47 G,18,T31.55
The nules aie dil 1L8BFaL part of these Mrancial statement
Summary of Significant accounting policies 2
Contigencies & Commitments 27
As per our Report of even date.
For Maheshwari & Associates For and on behalf of the board
C‘hartered Accountants i / .
Firm Reg.No. 311008E
Sateesh Patil nil Kumar Sethi P aj Jain
Partner Director Director
DIN : 00035800 DIN: 02671640

Membership No. 227311

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 29th May, 2019

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 29th May, 2019




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2019

(Amount in Rs. "000)

For the year ended For the year ended

Farttylars Notes | 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Income
Revenue from Operations 20 8,395.00 4,051.00
Other Income 21 1,135.50 4,690.68
Total Income 9,530.50 8,741.68
Expenses
Employee Benefit Expenses 22 2,444.18 96.87
Finance Cost 23 5,592.41 4,390.64
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 23 5,696.65 5,696.65
Other Expenses 25 2,295.57 15,284.81
‘ Total Expenses 16,028.81 25,468.97
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items, Prior Period items and tax from (6,498.31) {16,727.29ﬂ
continuing operations
Exceptional / Prior Period item - -
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations (6,498.31) (16,727.29)
Tax Expenses 26
Current tax 475.15 -
MAT Credit - (960.94)
Income tax for Earlier Year 88.10 (585.54)
Deferred tax 987.49 (2,652.34)
1,550.74 (4,198.82)
Profit for the year from Continuing Operations (8,049.05) (12,528.47)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCIly
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans
Income Tax effect
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods:
Fair value Changes On Investments 46.75 410.91
Income Tax effect (9.72) (85.47)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year 37.03  325.44
Total Lomprehensive Income for the year (8,012.02) (12,203.03)
Earnings per share - Basic and Diluted (Nominal value Rs. 1 per share) 28 (0.05) {0.09)
The notes are an integral part of these financial statement
Summary of Significant accounting policies
As per our Report of even date.
For Maheshwari & Assoc For and on behalf of the board
- .\
Sateesh Patil Anil Kdimar Sethi Puk
Partner Director Director
DIN : 00C25800 DIN: 02671640

Membership No. 227311

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 29th May, 2019

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 29th May, 2019




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March 2019

(Amount in Rs, '000)

Particulars

-

i For the year ended
| 31st March 2019

For the year ended
31st March 2018

Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax from Continuing Operations (6,498.31) (16,727.29)
|Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 5,696.65 5,696.65
Finance Expenses 5,568.90 4,335,79
Long Term Capital Gain on Fixed Assots (183.60) (3,706.03)
Interest Received (870.57) (457.16)
Working capitai adjustments:
(Decrease)/Increase in Trade & Other Receivables 25,854.33 (280.64)
(Decrease }/Increase in Trade & Other Payables 490.06 1260.32)
(Decrease )/Increase in Other Non Current Asset - 15,150.00
(Decrease )/Increase in Other Non Current Liability 6,355.00 (35,100.00)
(Decrease )/Increase in Other Current Liabilities 649.18 2,360.19
37,061.64 (28,988.81)
Income tax paid / (Refund) 1,628.83 11C.69
Net cash flows from operating activities 35,432.81 (29,099.50)
Cash flow from investing activities
Sale of Fixed Assets 749.99 7,119.19
Sale of Investments (30,048.17) (1,568.12)
Loans 4,948.74 (3,179.33)
Interest 870.57 457.16
Net cash flows used in investing activities {23,478.87) 2,828.90
Cash flow from financing activities
Movement Of Equity Component (34,311.45) 20,664.20
Long Term Borrowings 27,408.78 7,787.23
Finance Expense (Net) (5,568.90) (4,335.79)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (12,471.57) 24,115.64
MNet increase in cash and cash equivalents (517.63) (2,154.96)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 569.32 2,724.28
JEsh and cash equivalents at the end of the year (refer note 9) 51.69 569.32
Changes in Liability arrising from Financing activities for the year ended 31st March 2019 (Amount in Rs, '000)
1st April 2018 Proceeds Repayment Fair Value Changes | 31st March 201 9
Borrowings - Non Current (Refer Hote-13) 25,644.97 - - (2,761.15) 22,883.81
Borrowings - Current (Refer Note-16) 18,559.37 30,169.94 - - 48,729.31
44,204.34 30,169.94 - (2,761.15) 71,613.12
Changes in Liability arrising from Financing activities for the year ended 31st March 2018
1st April 2017 Proceeds Repayment Fair Value Changes | 31st March 2018 |
Borrowings - Non Current (Refer Note-13) 20,767.10 - - 4,877.76 25,644.87 |
Borrowings - Current (Refer Note-16) 15,650.00 2,909.37 - 18,559.37 |
36,417.10 2,909.37 - 4,877.76 44,204,24 |
As per vur Report of even date.,
For Maheshwari & Associates For and an hehalf of the board
Chiattered Acennntants i 3 j e o
Fitin Reg,No. 311008t . \ ;
Sateesh Patil Anil Kurfiar Sethi PuK
Partner Dirgctor Director
DIN : 00035800 DIN: 02671640

Membership No. 227311

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 29th May, 2019

Place: Bengaluru
Date : 29tn May, 2019




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2019

A) Equity Share Capital
(Amount in Rs. '000)

‘ ]
As at As at f As at

Particul

D 31st March 2019‘ 315t March 2018 315t March 2017
Equity shares of Re 1 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Balance at the beginning of the reporting period 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30 |
Changes in equity share capital during the year -]
Balance at the end of the reporting period | 14794830 1,47,148.30 | 1.47,148.30

B) Other Equity
(Amount in Rs. 000)

For the year ended 31st March 2019
[ Capital |  Securi ) ]
i Particulars Capital Reserve Rede:aplion Prernlut:-n |] General Reserve Re;:[uaucn Cc:}ponentl of Rel:a[[ned Total 1|
L rasge Reservi | serve nancial earnings
Balance as at 1st April 2018 11,980.73 - 1,20,052.84 | 33,716.45 49,218.81 1, ?9 037.09 J (97,632.06)| 2,96,373.87 |
Profit for the year - - . - (8,012, 02} (8,012.02)
Add- Addition - 20,075.00 391.56 . 20,466.56 |
Less- Adjustement - 120,075.00) (391.56) (34,311 45] tSd,T?&,O?_]I?
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax £ - 3 | - -
Total comprehensive income - 20,075.00 (19,683.44) (391.58) (34,311.45)| (8,012.02) {42.323,48}1
Balance as at 31st March 2019 | 11,980.73 | 20,075.00 1.20,052,54 | 14,033.01 48,827.25 | 1,44,725.64 | (1,05,644.08)] 7,54,050.40 |
For the year ended 31st March 2018 (Amount in Rs. '000}
Particulars Capital Reserve ‘ Cap ita.l Se:u‘r ity I General Reserve | Revaluation Equity Reta‘Ian Total J
Redemption Premium | Reserve Comg of earnings |
Balance as at 1st April 2017 11,980.73 - 1,20,052.84 28,838.59 54,096.67 1,58,372.90 (85,429.03)] z,87,912. 70—]
Profit for the year - < - - - (12,203.03) (12,203.03)
Add- Additions - - 4,877.86 . 20,664.19 - 25,542.05 |
Less - Transfer to General reserves - - - (4,877.86) . - ] c«:,s??,sa;l
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax - H = - 5 - =
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 4,877.86 (4,877.86) 20,664.19 (12,203, OBJJ 8,461.1_6J
Balance as at 31st March 2018 11,980.73 - 1,20,052.84 33,716.45 49,218.81 [ 1,79,037.09 f97,632,06][ 2,96,373.86

The notes are an integral part of these financial statement

As per our Report of even date,

r and on Behalf of the board

For Maheshwari & Associates
Chartered Accountants "
Sateesh Patil ain
Partner ) i r

DIN : 00015800 JIN: 02671640

Membership No. 227311

Place: Beagaluru

'lace: Bengaluru
Date : 29th May, 2019

ate : 29th May, 2019




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

1

2.01

(1

o;.f}'/éi:|ui\.ralie‘nts\.;; he Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Company background
The company is primarily engaged in business of dealing in properties and investing in infrastructure Projects

Significant accounting policies

Basis of preparation and presentation

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,

For all periods up to and including the year ended 31 March 2018, the company prepared its financial statements in
accordance accounting standards notified under the section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP). These financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 are
the first the company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS. Refer to note 41 for information on how the Group adopied

Ind AS.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard requires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.,

(b) Basis of measurement
The financial statements have been Prepared on a historical cost convention and on an accrual basis, except for the
following material items that have been measured at fair value as required by relevant Ind AS:
i. Certain financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments) and
ii. Defined benefit and other long-term employee benefits,

(€) Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future

periods affected.

(d) Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle,

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is eorrent whien,

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle,

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reportinig
period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

’é'ébh\ragq_ ing cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash

\.{:\ \




2,02 Property, plant and equipment,

2,03

s

Under tne previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), property, plant and equipment were carried in the balance sheet at their carrying
value being the cost of acquisition or construction tess accumulated depreciation.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes freight, duties, taxes and other incidental expenses relating to the
acquisition and installation of the respective assets. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an
asset after its use is included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met. Borrowing
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of those assets which necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use are capitalized.

Advance paid towards the acquisition of assets outstanding at each balance sheet are shown under capital advances. The
cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work in

progress.

Depreciation is provided on a straight line method, at the rates and manner prescribed in Schedule Il of the Companies Act,
2013,

Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is done on straight line basis.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset or a group of assets
comprising a cash-generating unit may be impaired. If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an
asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is

from other assets or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken intq account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for
publicly traded coinpanies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately
for each of the CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These pudgets and forecast calculations generally cover a
period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after
the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Group
extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an
increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

For nveatr wsaluding ponswill, wi assessioen s naae at each repurling date to determine whether thers fe an indicatinn
that previosly recognised impairment losses 1o longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group
estimates the asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment ioss is reversed only if there has
been a change in the assumptions used to determine Lhe asset'’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was
recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the asset is carried at a
_\a_‘E_:‘é_d'__al_l ount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

I
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2.04 Revenue recognition

can be reliably ineasured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment, net of taxes or duties
collected on behalf of the government. Further, The Company uses significant judgments while determining the transaction
price allocated to performance obligations .

Other income
Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated

future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate,
to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the
effective interest rate, the group estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses,
Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive the payment is established, which is generally when

shareholders approve the dividend.

2.05 Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of
a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly

specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to 1 April 2017, the group has determined whether the arrangement contain lease on
the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of transition.

a) As a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially ali the

risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges
and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability.
Finance charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the Company’s general policy on the borrowing
costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company
will obtain ewnership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of

the asset and the lease term.
Cperating lease payments arw rueoomsed aa an eapeise i Uk seatement ol profit and loss on a straioht-line basis aver th

lmase Lerin,

2.06 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives nse to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity. A

: [} pilied \‘- : . : .
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A Financial Assets
a) Classification
The company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or through
profit or loss), and
- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and iosses will either be recorded in profit or loss or other comprehensive income.
For investments in cdebt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment is neld. For
investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the company has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive income.

b) Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asser.

c) Subsequent measurement

Financial assets carried at amortised cost: A.financial assets is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual cash terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. Interest income from these financial assets is accounted in profit or toss using the effective interest
rate method. Impairment losses, forex gain / loss and gain / loss on derecognition of financial asset in this category is

recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI, if it is
held withing a business model whose objective is achieved by both from collection of contractual cash flows and selling the

financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Further equity instruments
where the company has made an irrevocable election based on its business model, to classify as instruments measured at
FVTOCI, are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Debt instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken through other comprehensive income (OCl), except for the
recognition of impairment gains or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit and loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in QC| is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other
income using the effective interest rate method.

Equity instruments - Movements in the carrying amount are taken to OCI and there is no subsequent reclassification of fair
value gains and losses n profit or lote. Dividend from sudl livestinents are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FYTPL): A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above
categories are subsequently fair valued through profit or loss. All gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss.

d) Impairment of financial assets
The company assesses on & forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with its assets cairied at amortised
cost and FYTOCI debt instruments. The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk..
For trade receivables, the company applies the simplified approach specified by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which
r 'ms,—epr\ted lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. A
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e) Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the

B Financial liabilities
a) Classification
The company classifies its financial liabilities in the following measurement categories:
- those to be measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss, and
- those measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

b) Initial recognition and measurement

The company recognises financial liabilities when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. All
financial liabilities are recognized at fair value on initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of financial liabilities, that are not at fair value through profit or loss, are reduced from the fair value on initial
recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issue of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss are expensed in profit or loss.

€) Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Amortised cost: After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the Effective interest rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement nf profit and loss,

Einnneint Ginbilivivn ul Lode waies Uauggly gulle o 1038 Lianclal ahllleles ot tar value Unough pratit or luss include
financial Labilities held for Lrading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the company that are not designated as
hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial
date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/
losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to
Statement of Profit and Loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other

anges in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. The company has not designated any
ility as at fair value through profit and loss.




Derecognition of financial Liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the originat
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

C Financial guarantee contracts
The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the Present value of the difference in net cash flows between the

(i) as Guarantor
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the amount determined in accordance with Ind AS 109 and

the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where appropriate.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates are provided for no compensation, the fair values are
accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the Investment.

(i) as Beneficiary
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial asset at the time the guarantee is taken. The asset is initially
measured at fair vaiue and subsequently amortised over the guarantee period.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables are provided by group companies for no compensation, the fair
values are accounted for as contributions and recognised as part of equity.

D Offsetting financial instruments

2,07

2,08

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet where there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an Intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the comapany or the

counterparty.

Borrowings
Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in
profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility will
be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs, To the extent there is no evidence that i is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Barrawings are removed fum the Lalance sheet when Lhe obligation specified in the contract is discharged, rancelled o
expired, The difference batwern tha CRLYING amoune ot a Linanclal Uability thal has been extinguished or transferred Lo
another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, 1s recognised in

profit or loss as other gains/ (losses).

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities uniess the company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan

the reporting date, the enti ty does not classify the liability as current, if the lender agreed, after the reporting period and
before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other

entityzin in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent
A egfé?&é‘a%&g, adjustment to the borrowing costs.




2,09 Taxes
Current income tax
Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the company operates and generates taxable income,

‘Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or (oss Is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCl or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions wnere appropriate.

Minimum alternate tax (‘MAT’) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The company
recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that there is convincing evidence that the Company will nay
normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the
year in which the company recognises MAT credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit
Available in respect of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of credit
to the statement of profit and loss and shown as 'MAT Credit Entitlement’. The company reviews the ‘MAT credit
entitlement’ asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent the company does not have convincing

company for a specified period of time. Accordingly, MAT Credit Entitlement is grouped with Deferred Tax Asset (net) in the
Balance Sheet.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities

and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

‘Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:
- when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or lability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or

ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxabla profit will be availalile
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credi ts and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

- when the deferred tax assel relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither *he
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temnporary differences can be

utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or Part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it nas become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

realised or the liability is settled,

<Nreporting date,
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Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in

OCl or directly in equity.

Leferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsat if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority,

Tax benefits acquired as part of a business combination, but not satisfying the criteria for Seéparate recognition at that date,
are recognised subsequently if new information about facts and circumstances change. Acquired deferred tax benefits
recognised within the measurement period reduce goodwill related to that acquisition if they result from new information
obtained about facts and circumstances existing at the acquisition date. If the carrying amount of goodwill is zero, any
remaining deferred tax benefits are recognised in QCI/ capital reserve depending on the principle explained for bargain
purchase gains, All other acquired tax benefits realised are recognised in profit or loss.

2.10 Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, 1t is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the

Passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities recognised in a business combination

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured
at the higner of the amount that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the
amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the requirements

for revenue recognition.

2.11 Cash and cash equivalents S
Cash and cash equivaient in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and shcr!-term deposits with an uriginat

maturity of three months or less, which are subject ta an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash flow statement

distribulivi Is authorsed and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly in

equity.
Non-cash distributions are measured at the fair value of the assets to be distributed with fair value re-measuremert

recognised directly in equity.

Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between the carrying amount of the liability and the carrying amoun. of
eﬁ%distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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2.13 Earnings per share

2.14

-:gqig'a'nse in Ind AS 12, ‘Income Taxes’, in connection with accounting for dividend distribution taxes.

The basic €arnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit/ (loss) attributable to owner's of the company for the
year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during reporting period.

The number of shares used in computing diluted earnings/ (loss) per share comprises the weighted average shares
considered for deriving basic €arnings/ (loss) per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares which could
have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the reporting date, unless they have been
issued at a later date, In computing diluted earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and which
either reduces earnings per share or increase loss per share are included.

Segment reporting

Recent Accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 116 Leases : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will replace
the existing leases Standard, Ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a contract i.e
lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for al|
leases with a term of more than twelve months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. Currently, operating lease
expenses are charged to the statement of Profit & Loss. The Standard also contains enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees. Ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 116 is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The standard permits two
possible methods of transition:
» Full retrospective - Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors
* Modified retrospective - Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard recognized at the

date of initial application.

Under modified retrospective approach, the lessee records the lease liability as the present valye of the remaining lease
Payments, discounted at the incremental borrowing rate and the right of use asset either as:

* Its carrying amount as if the standard had been applied since the commencement date, but discounted at lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application or

* An amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease pPayments related to that
lease recognized under Ind AS 17 im mediately before the date of initial application, '

The effects of adoption of INDAS 116 would be insignificant in the standalone financial statements

Ind AS 12 Appendix G Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which ic to be applied while pertorming the
determination of Laxable profit (or lussy), tax hases, 1nisad tax lunaes, unused Lax | 1EHIFE Ak Lax rates, when Uieie Iy
UILEHTAINTY Aver income tnx Liedlingnis unger Ind AS 12, According to the appendix, fompanies nead to dotorming e
probabiiity at the relevant tax aullivi ity aceepung &ach tax treatment, or 8roup of tax treatments, that the companies have
used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the most likely amount or the expected
value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and

tax rates.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C is annual periods beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company
will adopt the standard on April 1, 2019 and has decided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initial

application i.e. April 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The effect on adoption of Ind AS 12 Appendix C would be insignificant in the standalone financial statements,

Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Income taxes : On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments to the

A\




The amendment clarifies that an entity shall recognise the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events.

Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after April 1, 2019. The Company is
currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the standalone financial statements,

Amendment to Ind AS 19 - plan amendment, curtailment or settlement- On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs
issued amendments to Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefits’, in connection with accounting for plan amendments, curtailments
and settlements,

The amendments require an entity:
» to use updated assumptions to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a
plan amendment, curtailment or settiement: ang

* to recognise m profit or loss as part of past service €ost, or a gain or loss on settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even
if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset ceiling.
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ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

FINANCIAL ASSETS

4 INVESTMENTS
{Amount in Rs, '000)

As at
31st March 2017

As at

As at
B Particulars r 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018

‘\f’a!ued at amortised cost unless stated otherwise r

‘(B} Investment in Unquoted Equity Shares (Fully paid up) i

|
|
|

|
|
|
|

|

Subsidiary J
11,74,98,400 (March 31, 2018: 11,74,98,400 and April 1,2017; 8,10,18,700) Equity Shares of
Re 1/- Each, fuily paid up of ADD Industrial Park (Tamilnadu) Limited 1,17,498.40 1,17,498.40 [ 1,17,498.40 J
9,900 (March 31, 2018 2,600 and April 1,2017: 2,600) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully | |
paid up of Ratnatary Mega Food Park Private Limited 99.00 26,00 1' 26.00 [
Associate 1 '
2500 (March 31, 2018: 2500 and April 1,2017: 2500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid !
up of Alcamey Venture Private Limited 200.00 200,00 200.00 ]
47,500 {March 31, 2018: Nil and April 1,2017: Nil) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up ]
of Leanis Austin Town Devlopers Private Limited 47.50 I
47,500 (March 31, 2018: Nil and April 1,2017: Nil) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up I
of Leanis HSR Devlopers Private Limited 47.50
47,500 (March 31, 2018: Nil and April 1,2017: Nil) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up
of Leonis Kormangala Complex Private Limited 47.50
47,500 (March 31, 2018: Nil and April 1,2017: Nil) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up
of Leonis R T Nagar Devlopers Private Limited 47.50
47,500 (March 31, 2018: Nil and April 1,2017: Nil) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up
of Leonis Sadashivanagar Devlopers Private Limited 47.50 =
47,500 (March 31, 2018: Nil and April 1,2017: Nil) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up
of Leonis Vijaynagar Devlopers Private Limited 47.50
87,500 (March 31, 2018: 12,500 and April 1,2017: 12,500) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Delhi Waste Management Limited 40,625.00 3,500.00 3,500.00
Others
2,000 (March 31, 2018: 2,000 and April 1,2017: 2,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Mathura Nagar Waste Processing Co Limited 0.00 0.00 0.00 |
2,700 (March 31, 2018: 2,700 and April 1,2017: 2,700) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Allahabad Waste Processing Co Limited 0.00 0.00 0.00
Nil (March 31, 2018: 2,52,000 and April 1,2017: 2,52,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Gladiator Commodities Private Limited - 7,623.00 7,242.48
2,000 (March 31, 2018: 2,000 and April 1,2017: 2,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Splendor Realtors Private Limited 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
2,000 (March 31, 2018: 2,000 and April 1,2017: 2,000) Equity Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully
paid up of Sunview Enclave Private Limited 6,000.00 6,000.00 6,000.00
Investernent in Preference Share
1,51,50,000 (March 31, 2017: 1,51,50,000 and April 1,2017: Nil) 10% Non cummulative
redemable Preference Shares of Re 1/- Each, fully paid up of ADD Industrial Park Tamilnadu 1,756.29 1,568.12
Limited
Investement in Mutual Fund
Canara Rahern l'arge Cap Fund ynits 77,970 (Wan 1) 3 o A0 and s Al 2047:
14,920) 1,284.113 1,237.38 1,206.99

1,73,747.82 1,43,652.90 1,41,673.87
Provision for Diminution in the value of the investements 12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000&]
Total L 1,61,747.82 1,31,652.90 1,29,673.87 !
Current » e 5
Non-Current 1,61,747.82 1,31,652.90 1,29,673.87
hggregate value of unguoted investments 1,61,747.82 1,31,652.90 1,29,673.87

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

4A  Investment in equity shares have been valued at fair value as at 1st April 2017 and the fair value has been adopted as deemed cost in the Openging balance

sheet as per Ind AS 101, Accordingly the investment value have been appropriated as per the fair value and the corresponding debit/credit has been

impacted in Retained Earnings.
—

N




5 LOANS
{Amount in Rs. '000)

P I As at As at As at
articulars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Unsecured considered good unless stated
Loans to related party * 1,358.68 6,307.41 3,125.09
[ Total | 1,358.68 | 6,307.41 | 3,128.09
“ Loan and advances due from companies in which Company's director(s) is / are director(s) / member(s).
i As at As at As at
Farticulars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31s¢ March 2017
Delhi Waste Management Ltd - 349.38
POM POM Recycling Pvt Ltd 3 3,189.07 .
SPML Infra Limited - 1,542.72 621,37
Upskill Management Services Pvt Ltd 1,358.68 1,226.24 1,106.72
Meena Holding Limited - . 1,400.00
Total | 1,358.68 | 6,307.41 | 3,128.09
6  OTHER NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS
{(Amount in Rs. ‘000)
Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Security deposit receivable 15.03 15.03 15.03
Other advances recoverable in cash or kind 800.00 800.00 800.00
Total 815.03 815.03 815.03
7 OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
(Amount in Rs. '000)
As at As at As at
Pamicolas 31t March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 201?—]
Unsecured considered good unless stated
Advance against Purchase of Land* - - 15,150.00
[ Total - - 15,150,00

* The advance given to the company in which the director of the company is also director,
As per the terms of the settlement agreement, the amount due for refund was settled by allotment of redeemable 10% non-cumulative preference

shares during the year.




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

& TRADE RECEIVABLE

{(Amount in Rs, '000)
As at

As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

31st March 2017
Unsecured, considered good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they B

are due for pPayment i

Others 15,183.00 41,037,33 40.756.68 ’

S 17— vy

{(Amount in Rs. '000)
As at

As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

31st March 201 7
2,480.54
243,74

sits are made for varying periods of between
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective shart- term

9 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Particulars

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

On current accounts
Cash on hand

(Amount in Rs. ‘000)
As at 31st As at As at 1st

March 2019 31st March 2018 April 2017

s

As at
31st March 2017

1,29,673.87

1,61,747.82

1,31,652.90

1,358.68 6,307.41 3,128.09
Other Non Current Financial Assets 815,03 815.03 815.03
Trade Receivable 15,183.00 41,037.33 40,756.68
Cash and cash equivalents 51.69 569.32 2,724.28
Other Current Financial Assets 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37

1,86,682.59 1,84,8%5.32




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

11 SHARE CAPITAL

14,71,50,000

(Amount in Rs. '000)
As at 1st April 2017

14,71,50,000

Authorized
Equity Shares of Re.1/- each

14,71,50,000 1,47,150.00 1,47,150.00 1,47,150.00

9,00,00,000 9,00,00,000

2,30,50,000

90,000.00
23,050.00
2,60,200.00

9,00,00,000
2,30,50,000
26,02,00,000

90,000.00
23,050.00
2,60,200.00

2% Non cumulative Preference Shares of Re.1/- each
10% Non cumulative Preference Shares of Re.1,- each

Issued, Subscribed & Paid u
—==2=0, aUbscribed & Paid up

Equity Shares of Re, /. each, fully paid

23,71,50,000 2,37,150.00

11,80,00,000 1,18,000.00 1,18,000.00 | 11,80,00.000 1,18,000.00 |

2,91,48,300 29,148.30 |

14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30

Equity Shares

Equity Shares
As at 31 March 2019 As at 1st April 2017
Rs Number

14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30

14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30
11b. Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

Equity Shares: The company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Re.1 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. The dividend proposed by the Board of
Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except in case of interim dividend. In the event of liguidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all preferential amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

29,148.30 29,148.30

1,47,148.30 14,71,48,300 1,47,148.30

Equity Shares
As at 31 March 2018

2,91,48,300

14,71,48,300

11a. Reconciliation of number of shares

Particulars

Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares Issued upon | ion during the year (refer Note 3g)
Shares bought back during the year
Shares outstanding at the end of the year

11c. Equity Shares held by holding company and subsidiary of holding company
Out of the total number of shares, 11,68,32,562 Equity Shares (PY: 11,68,32,562) are held by International Constructions Limited, the holding Company,

11d. Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Equity Shares

As at 31 March 2019 As at 1st April 2017

As at 31 March 2018
No. of Shares . No. of Shares No. of Shares .
%
% of Holding held % of Holding held of Holding

11,68,32,562 11,68.32,562 | 7940  10,32,28.763 87.48
N 6289470 533

|

Name of Shareholder

International Constructions Ltd

Priti Devi Sethi

11e. There are no shares issued for consideration other then cash & shares brought back

11f. There are no unpaid calls from director & officers




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

12 OTHER EQUITY
{Amount in Rs, '000)

Asat |

As at As at |
Particulars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 11,980.73 11,980.73 11.980.73
Add: On account upon Merger - - .
Less: Deletion during the year - . s
Closing Balance 11,980.73 11,980.73 11,980.73
Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance - - 3
Add: Transfer from General Reserve 20,075.00 -
Less: Deletion during the year - - A
Closing Balance 20,075.00 - =
Securities Premium Reserve
Opening Balance 1,20,052.84 1,20,052.84 1.20.052.84
Add :Securities premium credited on account upon Merger - -
Less : Utilized during the year - - E
Closing Balance 1,20,052.84 1,20,052.84 1,20,052.84
Revaluation Reserve
Opening Balance 49,218.81 54,096,67 54.096.67
Add: On account upon Merger - - B
Less: Transfer to General Reserves 391.56 4,877.86 P
Closing Balance 48,827.25 49,218.81 54,096.67
General Reserve
Opening Balance 33,716.45 28,838.59 28,838.59
Add: On account upon Merger
Add: Additions During the year 391.56 4,877.86
Less: Deletion during the year 20,075.00 E 9
Closing Balance 14,033.01 33,716.45 28,838.59
Equity Component of Financial Instruments
Opening balance 1,79,037.09 1,58,372.90 B
Add Opening balance - 20,664.19 1.58.372.90
Less Adjustments 34,311.45
Closing balance 1,44,725.64 1,79,037.09 1,58,372.90
d. Surplus in the statement of profit or loss
Opening balance (97,632.06) (85,429.03) (85,429.03)
(+) Net Profit for the current year (8,012.02) (12,203.03)
Closing Balance (1,05,644.08) (97,632.06) (85,429.03)
Total - Other equity 2,54,050.40 2,96,373.86 2,87,912.70

Nature and purpose of other reserves:
Capital Reserves: The excess of liabilities over the assets on amalgamation has been accounted as capital reserves,

Revaluation Reserve: Revaluation reserves is created on account of revaluation of assets of the company. This reserves may be utilised or
transferred to geral reserves or statement of profit and loss upon the sale of assets or the depreciation of such assets.

Securities premium reserve: Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium received on issue of shares by the Company. The reserve
can be utilised in accordance with the provision of sec 52(2) of Companies Act, 2013.

GOPITAL Mestimiipliun 1suivul I FO38RVAS 1 crealed vul uf the free reserves which was utilised towards the redumption of preference shares, 1n
1he evtent of neminal value of the ahares sy 1 edeeid.

General Reserve: This is the free reserves created as per the provisions of companies act, the reserves may be utilsed as free reserves of the
company for declaration of dividend.

Equity Component of Financial Instrument: The Company had the Compound Financial Instruments , which has been fair valued as on trasition
date and the same has been classified into the equity component and the financial liability and financial asset based on the terms of contract . The

equity component has been shown under the head other equity.

Retained Earnings: Retained Earnings comprise of the company's accumulated undistributed earnings / (losses).




13 BORROWINGS
(Amount n Rs. '003)

| == T
| Particulars f As at As at As at _!
] | 31st March 2019 | 31st Mareh 2018 | 31stMarch 2017 !
Il |
L | 1 |
Unsecured i | |
Liability component of financialinstrument ‘ J
Non Convertible and Non cumulative preference shares * 22,883.81 25,644.97 120,767.10 ]
- | -]
|Total 22,883.81 25,644,97 20,767.10 |
*2% and 10% Non-cumulative Red ble Preference Shares:
Redeemable @ No of Shares | Amount Redeemable within
Particulars maximum of
|
2 from: th,
k% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each 2 8,95,70,000 89,570.00 o?aﬂ:{;er:: = dat;‘
f he d
10% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re, 1/- each 2 1,35,95,000 13,595.00 20years from the date
of atlotment
. . 20 years from the date
10% Non-cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Re. 1/- each 1 84,50.000 8,450.00
of allotment
{Total 11,16,15,000 1,11,615.00 | |

The preference shares are redeemable wholly or partly at the mutual consent of both the allottee as well the Company, within a maximum period,
of 20 years from the date of allotment. The preference shares shall carry dividend @ 2% and 10% per annum until redeemed and shall be payable an
non-cumulative basis prior to any dividend or other distribution payable to equity shareholders, subject to the availability of adequate distributable
profits for the respective financial year,

The preference shareholders shall not be entitled to receive natice, attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, except as otherwise
provided by the Companies Act, 2013 whereby the holders of such shares would be entitled to vote separately as a class, i.e. with respect to voting
entitlement of preference shareholders an matters / issues affecting substantive rights or liabilities of preference shareholders. The preference
shareholders shall not be entitled to bonus or right shares or participate in any profit of the Company except the right of dividend being attached to
the preference shares, However, in the event of winding up or liquidation of the Company, the paid up amount on preference shares wili be paid
back to the preference shareholders before any payment is made to the equity shareholders.

14 FROVISIONS
(Amount in Rs, '000)

- As at As at As at
Particulars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 34st March 2017
Gratuity 43,54 . L [I
Total 43.54 - -]

15 OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs. '000)

As at As at As at
r Particulars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Unsecured
Advance received against sale of Lang *
Form Related party 25,125.43 25,125.43 62,625.43
Form Others 12,500.00 6,145.00 3,745.00
Advance received against sale of Share 2,000.00 2,000.00 2,000.00
|
30,848,440 35,270,453 6&,3‘.-’0.4_3_’

* As per the terms of the agreement to sale of land, enterad with the parties during the prior years, the company was obligated to get the approvais
and required permissions from all the local body as well as Authorities from the Government, However the company was unable to fulfill the said
obligations and accordingly the parties requested for refund of advances given. As the company was unable to refund their advances due to lack of

funds, the management has entered into settlement agreement with the parties dated 1st May 2017,

As per the terms of the settlement agreement, the company had alloted during the year the redeemable 10% non-cumulative preference shares
equivalent to the advance money due for refund, Consequently during the financial year 2017-18 the cempany has converted the advances into
Preference shares amounting to Rs. 2,30,50.00/- (PY - Nil) as said.




16 BORROWINGS
(Amount in Rs, '000)

Particulars As at As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
|

Unsecured

Loan from Related Party* 15,797.42 18,316.91 14,950.00
Loans and advances from Director* 30,039.49 242,46 700.00
Loans and advances from Others 1,892.40

] 48,729.31 | 18,559.37 15,650,00 |

* Repayable on demand with a notice period of 30 days along with Interest at the rate of 12% per annum.

17 TRADE PAYABLE
{(Amaount in Rs. '000)

Particul As at As at As at
aficulars 31stMarch 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Trade Payables :
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises *
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 38,311.15 37,821.09 38,081.40
Total | 38,311.15 | 37,821.09 | 38,081.40 |
Break up of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
Particul As at As at As at
articulars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31t March 2017
Borrowings 71,613.12 44,204.34 36,417.10
Trade Payables 38,311.15 37,821.09 38,081.40
Total | 1,09,924.27 | 82,025.43 | 74,498.50

18 PROVISIONS
(Amount in Rs. ‘000)

Particul, As at As at As at
Arcalars 31stMarch 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Leave obligations and Compensated absenses - . 18.33
Gratuity 0.64 - %
| Total ] 0.64 -] 18.33
19 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs. '000)
Particul As at As at As at
artichlars 31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 | 31st March 2017
Salaries and other employee benefit payable - 33.85 -
Audit fees Payable 108.00 54,13 7 #3
Statutory Dues payable (Tax Deducted at Sources) 4,508.72 3,923.73 1,580.56
Total 4,616.72 | 4,011,71 ] 1,A37.10




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

20 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS
(Amount in Rs. '000)

For the year ended | For the year ended

Particulars

31st March 2018

Revenue from Job work 1,395.00 4,051.00
Revenue from Services 7,000.00 v
Total 8,395.00 4,051.00
21 OTHER INCOME
(Amount in Rs. '000)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Dividend - 105.19
Interest Received 682.40 457.16
Finance Income on Financial Assets 188.17 5
Long Term Capital Gain on Fixed Assets 183.60 3,706.03
Long Term Capital Gain on Share - -
Sundry Balance Written back 81.33 422.30
ILr.)tal 1,135.50 4,690.68
22 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(Amount in Rs. '000)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Salary 2,400.00 96.87
Gratuity (Refer Note no 37) 44,18 -
Total 2,444,18 96.87
23 FINANCE EXPENSES
(Amount in Rs. '000)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Interest on delayed payment of TDS 23.51 54.85
Interest on unsecured loans 2,491.50 1,843.74
Finance Cost 3,077.40 2,492.05
Total 5,692.41 4,390.64
24 DEPRECIATION

31st March 2019

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2019

31st March 2018

Depreciation

5,696.65

5,696.65

5,696.65

5,696.65




25

OTHER EXPENSES
{Amount in Rs. '000)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Job work expenses 1,200.00 541.50
Bank Charges 12.32 23.64
Printing & Stationery 2.84 -
Fair Value - INDAS - 13,581.89
General Expenses 39.39 -
Maintenance Charges 174.33 3
Insurance - 23.11
Rates & taxes 308.06 176.33
Rent 78.00 78.00
Travelling & Conveyance - 9.08
Professional Fee 37.63 385.22
Security Charges 384.00 407.04
Auditor's Remuneration 59.00 59.00
Total 2,295.57 15,284.81
* Payment to Auditors {(Amount in Rs. '000)
For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018
As Auditors
- Audit fees 59.00 59.00
- Tax Audit fees - =
In other capacity:
- Other services (certification fees) - :
59.00 59.00




26 INCOME TAX ASSETS (NET)

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As-at ‘ As at AS .t
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 31st March 2017
a) Income Tax Assets 2,076.45 535.71
b) Current Income Tax Liabilities 475.15 ' 2
Net Balance 1,601.30 | 535.71 |

follows:

Particulars

For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2018

31st March 2019

Net current income tax asset at the beginning 535.71 {160.54)
Income Tax paid 1,540.74 110.71
Provision Reversed - 585.54
Current Income tax expense 475.15

Income tax on other comprehensive income " -
Net current income tax asset at the end 1,601.30 535.71

iii)
Particulars

For the year ended | For the year ended

31st March 2019

31st March 2018

Income Tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Comprises:

Current income taxes 563.25 (1,546.47)
Deferred income taxes 987.49 (2,652.34)
Income tax expenses (net) 1,550.74 (4,198.81)

iv. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit

before income taxes is as below
For the year ended | For the year ended
L Particulars 31st March 2019 31st March 2018 1
Profit before income tax (6,498.31) (16,727.29)
Applicable income tax rate 26%
Computed expected tax expense (1,689.56)
Tax expense of Jointly controlled operations
Effect of expenses not allowed for tax purposes
Effect of income not allowed for 1 PUrposes,
Ineuime tax expense charges to the statement of Profit
and loss 1,550.74 (4,198.82)

(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars

As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018

As at
31st March 2017

Timing difference on tangible and intangible assets
depreciation and amortisation

Claims/ arbitration awards

Others

Fair Value Changes- INDAS Adjustment

7.64 5.28

(43,254.66)

(43,545.85)

N

Business loss/unabsorbed depreciation 5,056.02 5,764.40
Deferred income tax asset (38,482.19) (37,484.98)
WAT Credit entitlement 2,023.24 2,023.24
Total deférred tax liabilities/ (assets) (net) (36,458.95) (35,461.74)
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ADD REALTY LIMITED
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27 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As at ] As at As at 1
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 1st April 2017

Claims against Companies not acknowledged as debt -
Claims towards liquidated damages not acknowledged as debts
by the Company Against the above, debts of the like amounts are
withheld by the customers. However, the Company expects no - -
material liability to accrue on account of these claims

Disputed Statutory Demands
Bank guarantees given to UP Pollution Control Board -
Corporate guarantees given to banks for financial assistance

extended to subsidiaries and other bodies carporate E i

L : il

28 Capital and Other Commitments:

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided for: Rs. Nil (PY - Rs. Nil)

29 Earning Per Share
Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the parent by the weighted

average number of Equity shares outstanding during the year,

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 2019 31st March 2018
Net profit available for Equity Shareholders (8,049.05) (12,528.47)
Weighted Average number of Equity shares | 1,47,148 1,47,148
Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share | (0.05) (0.09)

30 Leases
Operating lease coinmitments — Company as lessee

The company has entered in to operating lease for the office premises for the period of one year,

The Company has incurred Rs. 78.00 (31 march 2017: Rs. 78.00) during the year towards minimum lease payment,

31 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions
The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future

periods.

Judgements: In the process of applying the company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sniirces of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial vear, are described below.
The company based its assuinptions and estimates on parameters available wnen the financial statements were orepared. Existing circurnstances and
assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the
company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.,

Cstimates and assuimptions:

©
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Impairment of non-financial assets: Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data
from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm's length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include
restructuring activities that the company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the CGU
being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised

by the company,

Taxes: Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant Mmanagement judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon
the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Fair value measureme,
be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to

these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of Jjudgement is required in establishing fair

values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions about these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

There are no MSME trade payable at the end of the year Rs. Nil (PY - Rs. Nil).

A disclosure with respect to segment reporting is not applicable, since the Company does not have more than one reportable segment as identified by

Management,

Foreign Currency Earnings And Qutgo Rs. Nil (PY - Rs, Nil}.

There are no reported foreign currency exposures that have not been hedged by a derivative instrument or otherwise, hence the disclosure of the same

is not made.

CIF value of imports Rs. Nil (PY - Rs, Nil).
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37 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A Defined contribution scheme: The company does not have any employee contribution scheme expenses,

B Defined benefit plans

Gratuity: in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act of 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”)
covering certain categories of employees. The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, disability or
termination of employment being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with

the Company.

The financial and demographic assumptions on annual basis used for valuation as at the Valuation Date are shown below. The ass umptions as at
the Valuation Date are used to determine the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation at that date:

Summary of financial assumptions:
As at As at As at
31st March 2019 31st March 2018 1st April 2017
Discount rate 7.48% | -
]E(pected rate of increase in compensation level of covered employees 5.00% ] -
Summary of Demographic assumptions:
As at As at As at
31st March 2019 | 31st March 2018 1st April 2017
‘ﬂmah’ty Rate (as % of IALM (2006-08) (Mod.) UL, Mortality Table) 100.00% - f -
[Disability Rate (as % of above mortality rate) 0.00% -]
Withdrawal Rate 0.00% .
Upto 30 Years 3.00% =
31 to 44 Years 2.00% -
Above 44 Years 1.00% -
|_Nom1al Retirement Age 70 years -
[Adjusted Average Future Service 8 Years -

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are, as follows :
|Particulars Amount
[Defined benefit obligation at 1 April 2017
[Interest cost
|Current service cost
|Benefits paid
|Remeasurement (gain)/ loss
[Remeasurement (gain)/ loss- Financial
Remeasurement (gain)/ loss - Demographic
Remeasurement (gain)/ loss- Experience
Return on Plan Assets
Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2018
|Interest cost

Current service cost 44.18
Benetits paid

Remeasurement (gain)/ loss -
Remeasurement (gain)/ loss- Finaneial -
Remeasiirement (gain)/ loss - De.-mugrﬂ‘ ghie

Remeasurement (gain)/ loss- Experience

[Return on Plan Assets

[Defined benefit obligation at 31 March 2019 44.18




Changes in the defined benefit obligation:
As at As at As at

Bartictilars 31t March 2019 | 315t March 2018 | 15t Aprif 2017
Defined benefit obligation at the be inning of the year | -] -] -
Current service cost | 44.18 | -] E
Past service coat | | B =)
Net Interest cost | -] - .
Sub-total included in profit or loss | 44.18 | -] j
Benefits paid | | -
Return on plan assets lexcluding amounts included in net interest expense| l - - —‘
Actuarial changes arising from chanEs in financial assumptions I - I = i N
Actuarial changes arising from changes in demagraphic ptions | | - | -
Experience adjustments | | -] .
Subtatal included in OCI | | - - !
Contributions by employer | | | .
‘Defl'nved benefit obligation at the end of the year | 44.18 | . .
Changes in the fair value of plan assets:

. As at As at Asat
Rartlelisi 315t March 2019 | 315t March 2018 | 15t Aprit 2017 ’
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the beginning NA | NA | NA,
Interest Income NA | NA | A
Contributions by emplayer NA | NA | NA
Benefit Payments from Plan Assets NA | NA | N4
Remeasurements - Return on Assets (Excluding Interest Income) | NA | NA | NA
Fair Value of Plan Assets at the end | NA | NA | NA
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant Is for defined benefit obligations are as shewn below:

P As at 31st March, 2019 | As at 31st March, 2018 | As at 1st April, 2017
0.5% Increase [ 0.5% decrease | 1% increase | 1% decrease 1% increase | 1% decrease

Discount rate 42.24 46.22 | | . -] E
Expected rate of increase in compensation level of covered om] ] 48.44 | 40.29 | T | - -]
]W!thd’rawal Rate | 42.71 | 45.67 | -] - Bl

The sensitivity analyses above have been determined based on a methad that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit obligation as a result of
reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period,

The fallewing payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

As at As at
i
Hartiuliss 31st March 2019 I 31st March 2018

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) | 0.64 -
Between 2 and 5 years 3.96 ¥
Between 5 years B5.66
Total expected payments 50.26

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 7years,
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ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

3% Fair values
The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by category:

Assets and liabilities carried at amortised cost
{Amount in Rs. '000)

Carrying Value | Fair Value
Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March As at 1st April As at 31st March | As at 31st March As at 1st April
2019 2018 2017 2019 2018 2017

Financial assets
Investments 1,61,747.82 1,31,652.90 1,29,673.87 1,61,747.82 1,31,652.90 1,29,673.87
Loans 1,358.68 6,307.41 3,128.09 1,358.68 6,307.41 3,128.09
Other Non Current Financial Assets 815.03 815.03 815.03 815.03 815.03 815.03
Trade Receivable 15,183.00 41,037.33 40,756.68 15,183.00 41,037.33 40,756.68
Cash and cash equivalents 51.69 569.32 2,724.28 51.69 569.32 2,724.28
Other Current Financial Assets 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37

1,86,682.59 |  1,87,908.36 | 1.84,624.32 | 1,86,682.59 | 1,87,908.36 1,84,624.32
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 71,613.12 44,204.34 36,417.10 71,613.12 44,204.34 36,417.10
Trade Payables 38,311.15 37,821.09 38,081.40 38,311.15 37,821.09 38,081.40

| 10952427 | 82,025.43 | 74,498.50 | 1,09,924.27 82,025.43 | 74,498.50 |

There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the profit and loss account.
There are no assets and liabilities which have been carried at fair value through the other comprehenssive income.

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to
the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the unquoted equity shares have been estimated using a DCF model. The valuation requires management to make certain assumptions about the model
inputs, including forecast cash flows, discount rate, credit risk and valatility, The probabilities of the various estimates within the range can be reasonably assessed and are
used in management's estimate of fair value for these unquoted equity investments.

The fair values of the Group's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using DCF methad using discount rate that reflects the issuer's borrowing rate as at
the end of the reporting period. The own nonperformance risk as at 31 March 2019 was assessed to be insignificant,

40  Fair value hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: Significant observable inputs other than quoted prices included in level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e, derived from prices).

Level 3: Significant unobservable inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based an observable market data (unobservable inputs),
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Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other
The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the comapny's operations and to provide guarantees to support its operations. The comapny’s principal
financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

payables, and financial guarantee contracts.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The Company's
Senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the
company. The financial risk committee provides assurance to the company’s senior management that the company's financial risk activities are governed by
apprapriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the company’s policies and risk abjectives,

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises
three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commedity risk. Financial instruments af fected by market

risk include loans and borrowings, deposits, FVTOC investments and derivative financial instruments,

The following assumptions have been made in calculating the sensitivity analyses:
i. The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in res

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the company's long-term debt obligations with floating interest rates, The
company manages its interest rate risk by having a balanced portfolio of fixed and variable rate loans and borrowings.

The company’s policy is to keep between 40% and 60% of its borrowings at fixed rates of interest, excluding borrowings that relate to discontinued operations. To
manage this, the company enters into interest rate swaps, in which it agrees to exchange, at specified intervals, the difference between fixed and varicble rate
interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon notional principal amount,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The company is
exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial

institutions and other financial instruments,

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed by the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a

customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard a

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual costomer basis. The company evaluates the concentration nf risl with respect L
trade receivahles as [ow, as the the rustome i Guvernment bady and uperares 1n largely indopondent markets,

Lingutelity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of tunds using a liquidity planning tool.

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibili ty through the use of bank loans and comapny company loans. The
Company’s policy is that not more than 25% of borrowings should mature in the next 12-month period. All the borrowings are from comapny companies and they
are payable on demand. As on date no loan has been demanded for repayment, accordingly the % of borrowing to be repaid during the year has not been provided.
The company assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be medium.

\
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The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on concractual undiscounted payments:
(Amount in Rs. '000

| As at 31st March 2019 OnDemand | Lessthan 3 |’ Lessthan 3 [Mare than 1 year Total |
I months menths to 12 ,‘
| months |
Borrowings 48,729.31 | - - 22,883.81 71,613.12
Trade Payables - I 38,311.15 - - 38,311.15
| As at 31st March 2018 On Demand Less than 3 Less than 3 More than 1 year Tatal ,
' months months to 12 i
months ! |
Borrowings 18,559.37 - - 25,644.97 44,204.34 |
Trade Payables ‘ - 37,821 09 - ' - 37,821.09
As at 1st April 2017 On Demand Lessthan3 | Less than 3 More than 1 year Total —r
months months ta 12 :
months | | |
Borrowings 15,650.00 - - ‘ 20,767.10 ’ 36,417.10 |
Trade Payables ’ - 38,081.40 | - - 38,081 i‘

Excessive risk concentration
Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geograpnical region,
features that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions.
Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company’s performance to developments affecting a particular industry,

or have economic

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company’s policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on the maintenance of a diversified

portfolio. Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlled and managed accordingly. Selective hedging is used within the comapny to manage risk
concentrations at both the relationship and industry levels,

Capital management

For the purpose of the Compary's capital management, capitat includes issue« equity capital, convertible preference shares, share premium and all
reserves attributable to the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value. The
company manages its capital structure and makes adjustmants in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants, To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Gecompany may adjust tne dividend payment to shareholaers, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The
company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debi. The Company's policy is to keep the gearnng ratio
between 1% and 10%. The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans zna borrowings, trade and other bayables, less cash ana cash equivalents.

ather equity

{Amount in Rs. '000)

Particulars As at 31st March | As at 31st March | As at 1st April
L 2019 2018 ! 2017
Borrowings 71,613.12 44,204.34 36,417.10
Trade Payables 38,311.15 37,821.09 38,081.40
Other Non Current Liability 39,625.43 33,270.43 68,370.43
Provisions 44.18 . 18.33
Other Current Liability 4,616.72 4,011.70 1,633.18 |
Less: cash and cash equivalents (0.05) .0.57) 2.72)
Net Debt I 1,54,210.55 1.19,306.99 1,44,517.72
Equity 1,47,148.30 I 1.47,148.30 1,47,148.30
Other Equity 7 54 050 dn 496,372,060 7,07,812.70
Copllml wid 1w uebe 4,01,198.70 4,43,522.16 4,35,061.00
rgaring ratio . 28% ] 21%| 25%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst nther things, a‘ms to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to
the interest-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to
immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been breaches in the financial covenants of interest-bearing loans during the year,

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years endea 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2018.

First-time adoption of Ind AS

These financial statements, for the year ended 31 March 2019, a‘e the first the Company has prepared n accordanc
the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company prepared its financiz! statements in accordance with acréunting
Cumpanies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 (Indian GAAP).

e with Ind AS. For perivds up to and including
standards notified under section 133 of the

Accordingly, the Company has prepared financiai statements which comply with Ind AS applicable for periods enging on 31 March 2019, together with the
comparative period data as at and for the year ended 31 March 2018, as described in the surnmary of significant accounting policies. In preparing these financial
statements, the Company’s opening balance sheet was prepared as at 1 April 2017, the Company's date of transition to Ind AS. This note explains the principal
adjustments made by the Company in restating its Indian GAAP financial statements, including the balance sheet as at 1 April 2017 and the financial statements as




Exemptions applied

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the

following exemptions:

Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with Ind AS 17, this assessment should be
carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. However, the Company has used Ind AS 101 exemption and assessed all arrangements based for

embedded leases based on conditions in place as at the date of transition.

The Company has opted to continue with the carrying values measured unde the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost for unguoted
equity instruments in Subsidiaries and Associates held at 1 April 2017,

Ind AS 101 allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the

following exemptions:

dian GAAP carrying amounts of assets and liabilities, that are required to be recognised under Ind AS, is their
deemed cost at the date of the acquisition. After the date of the acquisition, measurement is in accordance with respective Ind AS. The Company recognises all
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a past business combination, except (i) certain financial assets and liabilities that were derecognised and that fall under
the derecognition exception, and (ii) assets (including goodwill) and liabilities that were not recognised in the acquirer's consolidated balance sheet under its
previous GAAP and that would not qualify for recognition under Ind AS in the individual balance sheet of the acquiree. Assets and liabilities that do not qualify for
recognition under Ind AS are excluded from th
result of Ind AS recognition requirements.

the opening Ind AS balance sheet (apart from adjustments for goodwill

Ind AS 101 also requires that Indian GAAP carrying amount of goodwill must be used in
A5 101, the Company has tested goodwill for impairment at the date of

impairment and recognition or derecognition of intangible assets). In accordance with Ind
transition to Ind AS. No goodwill impairment was deemed necessary at 1 April 2017,

As part of the business combination exemption, the Company has also used Ind AS 101 exemption regarding previously unconsolidated subsidiaries. The use of this
exemption requires the Company to adjust the carrying amounts of the previously unconsolidated subsidiary’s assets and liabilities to the amounts that Ind AS
would require in the subsidiary’s balance sheet. The deemed cost of goodwill equals the difference at the date of transition to Ind AS between the parent’s
interest in those adjusted carrying amounts, and the cost in the parent’s separate financial statements of its investment in the subsidiary. The cost of a subsidiary
in the parent’s separate financial statements is the Indian GAAP carrying amount at the transition date.

- FYTOCI - unquoted equity shares

- FYTOCI - Remeasurement of Benifits

- Impairment of financial assets based on expected credit loss model
The estimates used by the Company to present
of 31 March 2018.

these amounts in accordance with Ind AS reflect conditions at 1 April 2017, the date of transition to Ind AS and as




ADD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

Reconciliation of equity as at 1 April 2017 (date of transition to Ind AS) and 31st March 2018

[Amount in Rs. ‘000
As at 1st April 2017 As at 31st March 2018

. Note
Particulars
Ne. As per Local GAAP Adjustments As per Ind AS A ?A;I;xal Adjustments As per Ind AS
ASSETS
Noen-current assets
(a) Property 4,18,957.21 . 4,18,957.21 4,09,847.40 . 4,09,847.40
(b} Financial Assets . a . .
- Investments 1 1,24,785.10 4,888.77 1,29,673.87 1,39,935.10 {8,282.20) 1,31,652.90
- Loans 3,128.09 - 3,128.09 6,307.41 - 6,307.41
- Other non-current financial Assets 815.03 . 815.03 815.03 = 815.03
(d) Deferred tax Assets(net) - - - - - -
(¢} Other non-current Assets 15,150.00 - 15,150.00 -
| 5,62,835.43 4,888.77 5,67,724.20 | 5,56,904.94 (8,282.20)] 5,48,622.74
Current assets - - . 5 .
(a) Financial assets . - - - - -
- Trade Receivable 40,756.68 b 40,756.68 41,037.33 - 41,037.33
- Cash and Cash Equivalents 2,724.28 - 2,724.28 569.32 C 569.32
- Other Current Financial Assets 7,526.37 - 7,526.37 7,526.37 7,526.37
(b] Current Income tax Receivable (Net) - - - 535.71 - 535.71
L 51,007.33 - 51,007.33 49,668.73 [ 49,668.73
TOTAL ASSETS 6,13,842.76 4,888.77 6,18,731.53 6,06,573.67 (8,282,20) 5,98,291.47
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a} Equity Share capital 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30 1,47,148.30
(b) Other Equity 2 1,64,895.27 1,23,017.43 2,87,912.70 1,71,984.70 1,24,389.16 2,96,373.86
Total equity 3,12,043.57 1,23,017.43 4,35,061.00 3,19,133.00 1,24,389.16 4,43,522.16
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 2 1,79,140,00 (1,58,372.90) 20,767.10 2,02,190.00 (1,76,545.03) 25,644,97
(b) Provisions - - - -
(c) Deffered Tax Liabilities 3 (1,254.70) 40,244.24 38,989.54 (8,411.93) 43,873.67 35,461.74
(d) Other non current liabilities 68,370.43 - 68,370.43 33,270.43 - 33,270.43
2,46,255.73 (1,18,128.66) 1,28,127.07 2,27,048.50 {1,32,671.36) £4,377.14
Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 15,650.00 s 15,650.00 18,559.37 - 18,559.37
- Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises *
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and 38,081.40 - 38,081.40 37,821.09 37,821.09
small enterprises
(b) Other current liabilities 1,633.19 - 1,633.19 4,011.71 - 4,011.0
(¢) Provision 18.35 - 18.35 2 ) ¥
(d) Current income Tax Liabilities 160.54 - 160.54 - 2 *
55,543,48 - 55,543.48 60,392.17 . 60,392.17
Total liabilities 3,01,799.21 1,18,128.66) 1,83,670.55 2,87,440.67 (1,32,671.36) 1,54,769.31
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILTIES 6,13,842.78 4,888.77 I 6,18,731.55 6,06,573.67 (8,282.20) 5,98,291.47

o




Reconciliasation of other equity (Amount in Rs. '000)
As at March 31,

2018 Asat April 1,
Particulars (End of Last Period 2017
(Date of

presented under Transition)

previous GAAP)
Equity as per Local Gaap 2,61,554.71 2,54,465.28
Fair value of Investments as per Ind AS 2 (8,282.20) 4,888.77
Finance Cost 2 2,492.05 z
Security Premium on Financial Instrument 2 (89,570.00) (89,570.00)
Impact of on equity component of Financial Instrument 2 1,74,052.98 1,58,372.90
Impact of Deferred Tax 3 (43,873.67) (40,244.24)
Total Adjustment to Equity 34,819.16 33,447.43
Total Equity under IND AS 2,96,373.87 | 2,87,912.71

1) Investment in Equity shares: The Company has made an investment in equi ty shares .

retained earnings. (Amount in Rs, '000)

2) Non cumulative Non-Convertible preference shares: The comapny has issues non cumulative and non-convertible redeemable preference shares. The
preference shares carry fixed cumulative dividend which is non-discretionary. Under Indian GAAP, the preference shares were classified as equity and dividend
payable thereon was treated as distribution of profit. Under Ind AS, non-convertible preference shares are classified into liability based on the terms of the
contract. Interest on liability component is recognised using the effective interest method. Thus the preference share capital is reduced by Rs. 1,76,545.03 (1st
April 2017: Rs. 1,58,372.90) with a corresponding increase in borrowings as liability component. (Amount in Rs, '000)

3) Deferred tax: Indian GAAP requires deferred tax accounting using the income statement approach, which focuses on differences between taxable profits
and accounting profits for the period. Ind AS 12 requires entities to account for deferred taxes using the balance sheet approach, which focuses on temporary
differences between the carrying amount of an asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base. The application of Ind AS 12 approach has resulted in

recognition of deferred tax on new temporary differences which was not required under Indian GAAP.

In addition, the various transitional adjustments lead to temporary differences. According to the accounting policies, the comapny has to account for such
differences. Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in retained earnings or a separate component of

equity. On the date of transition, the net impact on deferred tax liabilities is of Rs, 43,873.67 (1st April 2017: Rs. 40,244.24).(Amount in Rs. '000)
Other comprehensive income: Under Indian GAAP, the comapny has not presented other comprehensive income (OCI) separately, Hence, it has reconciled

Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, Indian GAAP profit or loss is reconciled to total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.




ACD REALTY LIMITED
Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019

Reconciliation of of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

(Amount in Rs. "000)

Note As per Local ;
E Particulars No. GAAP Adjustments As per Ind AS ]
Income |
Revenue from Operations 4,051.00 4,051.00 [
Other Income 4,690.68 4,690.68 |
J -
Total income [ 8,741.68 | - 8.741.68 |
Expenses -
Employee Benefit Expenses 96.87 - 96.87 |
Finance Cost 1 1,898.59 2,492.05 4,390.64
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 5,696.65 - 5,696.65
Other Expenses 2 1,702.92 13,581.89 15,284.81
Total Expenses 9,395.03 16,073.94 25,468.97
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax from continuing (653.35) (16,073.94) (16,?27.25’
operations |
Exceptional / Prior Period item - -
Profit/(loss) before tax from continuing operations 653.35 (16.?27.@
Tax Expenses » I
Current tax - -
MAT Credit (960.94) {960.94)
Income tax for Earlier Year (585.54) 2 (585.54)
Deffered Tax 3 (6,196.30) 3,543.96 (2,652.34)
(7,742.78) 3,543.96 (4,198.82)|
Profit for the year 7,089.43 (19,617.90) {12.523.4?}/
Other Comprehensive Income (oCl) ]
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or ]
loss i1 subsequent periods: - -
Re-Measurement gains on defined benefit plans - =
Income Tax effect - I
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss |
in subsequent periods: % .
Fair value Changes On Investments - 410.91 410.91
Income Tax effect 3 (85.47) {85.47)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - 325.44 325.44 |
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 7,089.43 (19,292.46) (12,203,03)

1) Finance Cost :
Interast on liability

Under Ind AS, non-convertible preference shares are classified into liabilily baseel an the terms of the contract.
component is recugnised using the cffective interest method, the yearly fair value changes has been accounted as

financial liability of Rs. 2,492.05 with a corresponding net increase in finance Cost in the statement of profit and loss of Rs. 2.492.05

(Amount in ‘000).

2) Fair Value of Investments: The fair Vaiue of investment in the form of Equity shares in Other Companies (Refer note 4) equal to
the amount of decrease in the fair value of investment has peen accounted Rs.13,581.89 and Rs 410.91 have been accounted in
Statement of Profit and Loss and in other comprehensive income respectively (Amount ir '000).

3) Deferred tax: The Deferred tax adjustments are recognised in correlation to the underly

ing transaction in statement of profit and

loss and in Other comprehenssive Income. The deferred tax income recognised during the year ending 31st March 2018 is Rs. 3,543.96
and Rs.85.47 in Profit and loss and in other comprehenssive income respectively (Amount in '000).

Other comprehensive income: Under indian GAAP, the Group has not presented other comprehensive income
it has reconciled Indian GAAP profit or loss to profit or profit or loss as per Ind AS. Further, Indian GAAP profi

total comprehensive income as per Ind AS.

»

(OCl) separately. Hence,
t or loss is reconciled to

-




ADD REALTY LIMITED

Notes to financial statements as at 31st March 2019
44 The amounts and disclosures included in the financial statements of the previous year have been reclassified and regrouped whereever

necessary.
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